
 
 

 
 

44 N. San Joaquin Street  |  Stockton, California 95202   |   T  209 468 8683   |   F  209 468 9534 
 
 

Election Advisory Committee 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda 

San Joaquin County Election Advisory Committee 
San Joaquin County Administration Building, Training Room 146 

44 N. San Joaquin St. 
Stockton, CA 95202 

Thursday, January 9, 2025, 6:00 PM 
 
I. Call to Order  

 
1) Pledge of Allegiance  
 
2) Roll Call  

 
II. Approve Minutes  

 
1) Election Advisory Committee – Regular Meeting – May 23, 2024  

 
2) Election Advisory Committee – Regular Meeting – August 27, 2024 

 
III. Consent Items 
 

1) Election Officer Survey Responses 
 
IV. Discussion Items 
 

1) Election Officer Experience on Election Day – Deborah Collins & Mike Collins 
 

2) Recommend the Board of Supervisors Write a Letter to President Trump to Require 
Individuals to Provide Documentary Proof of U.S. Citizenship in Order to Register to 
Vote in Federal Elections and Prohibit States from Accepting and Processing an 
Application to Register to Vote in a Federal Election Unless the Applicant Presents 
Documentary Proof of U.S. Citizenship – Supervisor Ding 
 

3) Recommend the Board of Supervisors Write a Letter to Governor Newsom Urging 
Him to 1) Require Voters to Show a Valid California Identification Showing they are 
a Legal Resident of California and Said County to Receive a Ballot and to Vote any 
Type of Ballot Allowed in that said Election in Said County and 2) Remove Article 
4.5. Conditional Voter Registration (Sections 2170-2173) from the California 
Election Code – Supervisor Ding 
 

4) Receive an Update from the Registrar of Voters on the November 5, 2024, Presidential 
General Election in San Joaquin County 



 
 

 
 

44 N. San Joaquin Street  |  Stockton, California 95202   |   T  209 468 8683   |   F  209 468 9534 
 
 

Election Advisory Committee 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
V. Public Comment 
 
VI. Registrar of Voters Comments 
 
VII. Committee Comments  
 
VIII. Schedule Next Meeting  
 
IX. Adjournment until the next regular meeting as identified by the Election Advisory Committee 

in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan for the Election Advisory Committee. 



Election Advisory Committee
Meeting Minutes - May 23, 2024

I. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Amador at 6 PM. The Pledge of
Allegiance was led by David Cushman.

II. Committee Members Present: Chairman Tony Amador, Vice Chair David
Cushman, Christian Santos, Pamela Sloan, John Beckman, Aimee Rubio, Nicole
Goehring (chief of sta� for Supervisor Ding)

III. Pamela made a motion to approve the minutes from the previous meeting with
relevant corrections regarding Registrar Olivia Hale presenting items to the EAC
tonight, motion was seconded by Christian. The motion was approved unanimously.

IV. Consent Items
A. Update from the Registrar of Voters O�ce

1. The ROV O�ce provided the EAC with documentation regarding
current items and issues being addressed by the ROV ahead of the
November 2024 election, including:

a) Upcoming items before the Board of Supervisors
b) Election O�cer Training & Polling Locations Update
c) Voter roll maintenance - using Experian True Trace

2. No questions were asked from the EAC on this item.
V. Discussion Items

A. Drop Box Recommendations - Holly Moore
1. Chairman Amador asked for a motion to adopt the Drop Box

Recommendations given by Holly Moore at the previous EAC
meeting in April. Christian made the motion, seconded by David.

2. Discussion
a) A question was asked to Holly regarding whether she included

a speci�c time frame for drop boxes to be operational, Holly
responded that she did not and that the EAC was welcome to
include a speci�c time frame if that was the committee’s wish.

b) Another question to Holly was whether she knew the impact
of only utilizing the minimum number of drop boxes required
as opposed to the 25 boxes that San Joaquin is currently
utilizing. Holly stated there would be no impact since we
would be utilizing the number of boxes required under state
law.



c) A question was asked to Registrar Olivia Hale regarding
whether ballots stu�ed into a drop box that is over capacity
would count as a valid vote. Olivia responded that as long as a
ballot is in a drop box it would count as a valid vote, she also
said her o�ce looked into the issue of the total number of
ballots that were picked up from drop boxes and the numbers
given re�ected to her knowledge a full day of ballots being
deposited in the box.

d) Another question was asked to Olivia Hale: are ballots
deposited in a drop box treated with the same scrutiny as VBM
ballots or ballots physically turned in at the ROV? Olivia
responded yes.

3. Following discussion, a vote was held to adopt the motion and it was
passed unanimously.

B. Improving Election Integrity in San Joaquin County - David Robb
1. Chairman Amador asked for a motion to adopt the

Recommendations to Improve Election Integrity presented by David
Robb at the previous EAC meeting in April. Christian made the
motion, seconded by David.

2. Discussion
a) A question was asked to David regarding whether or not there

was a di�erence in how long it took to count ballots via
machine tabulation vs. a hand count. David replied that under
modern methods of hand counting ballots it does not typically
take any more time to count than machine tabulation.

b) The next question for David: are there any other counties in
California or throughout the country that use hand counting
to count ballots? David replied that there are other
jurisdictions but the one he’s most familiar with is the state of
Missouri. Much of the state utilizes hand counting for elections
and that method is e�cient and also provides an accurate result
for the same or less cost than machine tabulation.

c) Question for Olivia: does the county employ a third party to
audit our election process. Olivia replied that the county does
not, but that the state requires the ROV to do logic and
accuracy tests before the election and a 1% manual tally after
the election.



(1) Follow-up to Olivia: is the ROV speci�cally prohibited
from allowing a third party to do an election audit
beyond what the ROV does? Olivia replied that it
would be di�cult for that to take place because of the
rules and regulations the ROV has to follow regarding
chain of custody and who has access to ballots.

(2) Another follow-up: is there any prohibition on
volunteers coming to do an audit in the ROV o�ce?
Olivia replied that their paid sta� plus temporary
workers already conducts the existing tests of the system
that take place.

(a) David replied that the audit he is speaking of is
more comprehensive than the current tests and
1% tally that the ROV already conducts.

d) Question for David: can you point to any jurisdiction that has
conducted the type of audit you’re describing? David replied
that he’s not aware of any speci�c jurisdiction but audits have
been conducted in Michigan, Pennsylvania, and other places.

e) Question for David: regarding the stipulation that the ROV
must follow California law regarding internet access, has he
found there was a �aw in our system? David replied that he
can’t point to a speci�c instance but he has received testimony
from election workers who have stated they have seen election
computers or devices (“poll pads”) connected to open access
points at polling places.

f) Question for David: how do you ensure that no device is ever
connected to the Internet? David replied it is di�cult to
completely ensure that no devices are connected to the internet,
but wireless access points can be monitored to detect if there is
a device that is connected.

g) Comments from a committee member:
(1) First point: ROV is already using Experian True Trace

so this point might be redundant
(a) David’s response is redundancy is the point, and

to verify that the machine tallies are accurate
(2) Next point: Hand count might take way too long and

impede us having �nal election results in a timely
manner



h) Question for David: would you recommend scientists or
engineers to participate in an audit? David replied that he
would.

i) Comment from a committee member: instead of maybe doing
a full hand count, perhaps do a hand count of certain
precincts?

3. Chairman Amador entertained a motion to completely pull this item
from being voted on as a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors
due to wanting more clarity and input on the ideas presented in
David’s recommendation. Motion was made by Pamela, seconded by
Christian. Motion passes unanimously.

C. Chairman Amador asked the County Counsel to con�rm that working
groups or ad hoc groups consisting of no more than 2 committee members
were allowed to meet and discuss items between EAC meetings. Counsel
replied that was acceptable.

VI. Several members of the audience participated in public comment.
VII. ROV Comments

A. The ROV removed 32,000 voters from active status before the primary
B. Voters’ birthdates of 1850 or before: there were voters from prior to 1971

who were not required to list their DOB when registering. The number of
extremely old birthdates continues to diminish, and a sta� member is tasked
with reaching out to voters to correct that

C. This will be the county’s �rst time utilizing True Trace before the November
election

D. The ROV o�ce met with city clerks in the county to meet new city clerks
and also hear comments and questions as they ramp up for the general
election

E. The state is putting on a voter roll maintenance training for sta� and the
ROV is making sure sta� attends those trainings, including herself

F. Question for ROV: with poll pads there is no way to match digital signature
from voter with signature on �le, is there a way to �x that for the future? The
poll pad doesn’t have the capability to do that but the poll pad does keep the
signature on �le.

G. Question for ROV: why would a deceased relative receive a ballot a year after
their death? The ROV doesn’t remove a voter from the rolls until their o�ce
receives a formal noti�cation that they passed away.



H. Comment for ROV: professor from Stanford whose reports have been cited
by ROV believes there is no problem with elections, therefore his judgment is
questionable

I. Question for ROV: What is True Trace? It is a product from Experian also
used for credit reporting, anytime there is a change in a voter’s personal data
the ROV is able to receive that noti�cation

VIII. Committee Comments
A. John Beckman: Was a poll worker, worked at the election’s o�ce, did

personal observations of processes on election day, also watched signature
veri�cation process live, he believes it is the best way to ensure election
integrity and has to be monitored and used extensively. His concern about
in-person polling places is that poll workers could theoretically alter vote
tallies at their polling place without being caught

IX. Next meeting is scheduled for September 12, 2024.
X. The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 PM.



San Joaquin County Election Advisory Committee 
Minutes 

San Joaquin County Administration Building, Training Room 146 
44 N. San Joaquin St. 
Stockton, CA 95202 

Monday, August 26, 2024, 6:00 PM 
I. Call to Order 6:02pm 

1) Pledge of Allegiance  

2) Roll Call – Tony Amador, Aimee Rubio, Chrystena Rockett, Christian Santos, John Beckman, 
Janice Vermeulen, Deputy County Administrator Josh Branco, Olivia Hale, Registrar of Voters, Eric 
Diaz, Asst. Registrar and Nicole Goehring, Chief of Staff for Supervisor Ding 

Chairman Amador called a moment of silence in memory of Carol Hadley, District 2 Alternate 

II. Approve Minutes  

1) Election Advisory Committee – Regular Meeting – May 23, 2024  

The May 23rd minutes will be approved at the December 11th meeting. 

III. Consent Items  

1) Receive the Amended Plan for Formation Approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 13, 
2024 – Reviewed and Accepted 

IV. Discussion Items  

1) Receive Public Comment from Informal Workgroups  

David Robb gave a presentation on voter rolls. 

Carla Huehne gave a presentation on a sample in person voting hand count. 

Janice Vermeulen gave a presentation on increasing polling locations. 

Deputy County Administrator Josh Branco clarified the policy rule adopted by the committee at the 
September 14, 2023 meeting regarding the role of alternates as follows: 

Participation at EAC meetings in the role as alternate when the primary EAC member is present: 1. 
The alternate shall have no voting rights at the EAC meetings. 2. The alternate may provide 
comments and/or participate in discussions related to agendized items as facilitated by the EAC 
Chair (“Chair”). 3. The alternate may participate in public comment if compelled to do so. 

2) Receive an Update from the Registrar of Voters on the November 5, 2024, Presidential 
General Election in San Joaquin County – received 

Link to presentation 

V. Public Comment  

https://sanjoaquincountyca.iqm2.com/Citizens/FileOpen.aspx?Type=4&ID=40433&MeetingID=2540


Molly Watkins – Spoke about the issues with the 36 TB flash drive that was given to the committee 
to view the 25 drop boxes during the 2024 Primary Election; questioned the source of the grant 
money for the cameras for the 2024 General Election and promoted in person voting on election 
day 

Cynthia Cuevas – In person voting volunteers were not trained and recommended a written 
procedure per scenario so people are comfortable working the polls; voter roll churning is 
concerning – how to ensure accuracy? 

David Robb – Regarding the voter rolls, there were 3,600 legitimate addresses that were vacant lots 

VI. Registrar of Voters Comments 

The ROV is working hard to address the public’s concerns and improve the processes from the 
Primary for the General Election.  The Sheriff is responsive to voter’s concerns.  Please report your 
concerns to the Sheriff.  Earth Cam cameras will be used for the Drop Boxes in the General 
Election. 

VII. Committee Comments  

Christian Santos – Can we agendize for December voter roll churning and the switching of political 
preferences 

John Beckman – In person voting is ripe for fraud with the inability to check ID and no signature 
verification 

VIII. Schedule Next Meeting 

The next meeting will be held December 12, 2004  

IX. Adjournment until the next meeting in December 2024 as identified by the Election Advisory 
Committee in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan for the Election Advisory Committee. 



1

November 5, 2024 
Presidential General Election

ELECTION OFFICER FEEDBACK 
SURVEY RESPONSES



2

1. Did you feel adequately prepared after completing the Election Officer training? 



3

2. Did the training cover all aspects of your duties as an Election Officer? 



4

3. Were the training materials easy to understand and follow? 



5

4. Did the training provide sufficient information on handling different voter scenarios (e.g., ID 
requirements, provisional ballots, Conditional Voter Registrations)? 



6

5. Were the trainers knowledgeable and able to address your questions effectively? 



7

6.  Did the training prepare you to handle technical issues (e.g., voting machines, software glitches)? 



8

7. Do you feel confident operating the Poll Pad (E-roster)? 



9

8. Were there any topics or areas in the training that you felt were not 
adequately covered? 



10

9. Would you rate the overall quality of the training as satisfactory? 



11

10. Did you receive additional support or resources after completing the initial 
training? 



12

11. Were you confident in your ability to perform your duties on Election Day 
after completing the training? 



13

12. Did you encounter challenges on Election Day that were not adequately 
addressed in the training? 



14

13. Do you have suggestions for improving the Election Officer training program in the future?

Positive Feedback

1. Hands-On Training Value
i. Multiple people praised the hands-on portion of training.
ii. Setting up sample stations during training helped them feel more comfortable on Election Day.
iii. Live demonstrations were especially useful in reducing confusion.

2. Knowledgeable Trainers & Teamwork
i. Many noted trainers were professional, quick, and ensured understanding.
ii. Collaboration among poll workers often went smoothly, with more experienced workers helping new workers.
iii. Some inspectors were specifically highlighted for their calm professionalism in handling issues.

3. Improved Training Compared to Past Years
i. A few comments specifically stated that this year’s training was “the best we’ve had in years.”
ii. The printed materials in the binder were commended for being extremely helpful.

Overall Positive Experiences
i. Many respondents said the election ran smoothly, they enjoyed the experience and would be willing to work again.
ii. Some even mentioned the day was “awesome” or “great” and that they learned a lot by actively doing the tasks.



15

Summary of Key Improvement Recommendations
1. Enhance Training

i. Offer more robust, scenario-based, hands-on training (especially for machines and provisional ballots).
ii. Ensure online and in-person instructions align.
iii. Provide role-specific trainings (e.g., Inspector/Lead Officer vs. Clerk).

2. Improve Equipment & Supplies Management
i. Provide extra toner, paper, and backup supplies at each site during Presidential General Elections.
ii. Include easy-to-read guides or labels on equipment for quick troubleshooting (toner replacement, clearing jams, etc.).
iii. Train field inspectors on swift resolution of equipment malfunctions.

3. Address Polling Place Challenges
i. Pre-evaluate facilities to ensure adequate space, lighting, and accessibility.
ii. Provide earlier access for setup.
iii. If needed, relocate or redesign layout in cramped locations.

4. Strengthen Policy & Procedure Clarity
i. Clarify rules on voter apparel (electioneering vs. free expression).
ii. Provide clear instructions on handling poll watchers/observers.
iii. Prepare staff for ID checks, out-of-county voters, and scanning VBM ballots.

5. Streamline Day-of Support
i. Improve or expand help desk capacity for faster response.
ii. Offer better on-site support (e.g., more knowledgeable field inspectors, designated troubleshooters).
iii. Provide quick-reference or laminated “cheat sheets” on top tasks.



November 30th, 2024 

To whom it may concern,  

I was asked to give my notes as an election officer in San Joaquin County for the Presidential General 
election on November 5th, 2024. I worked at the poll location, Kennedy Community Center 91107. 

Our team was on time and consisted of 4 workers and 3 students. We had everything up and running by 
6:40am so we were ready at 7am for the polls to open on time. 

Our team worked well together, and our inspector was great.  

Our field inspector was also great and helped us get more paper and brought us ink before we even 
needed it, which was very proactive because we did run out of ink, and it was during a busy time.   

The call center only picked up our call a couple of times. We called through throughout the day for 
different issues and couldn’t get through. Please verify this with our inspector if you need further 
information. 

We did have the DOJ show up to our location and probably staying between 45 min – 60 min. There were 
2, 1 man and 1 woman. I did not get their names. The woman said she was from California, but the man 
was from Washington DC. The woman told me that out of our 58 counties in California, we were the only 
county that requested that they be here. She did not tell me who requested them or why. The man 
spoke to at least 2 of the students in Spanish so I don’t know what he said to them or asked them. They 
responded to him in Spanish. I don’t speak Spanish so I wouldn’t know what was said. He only spoke a 
couple of sentences to each of them from what I could hear. 

We also had a poll watcher come in and she was a bit aggressive. She was walking behind our polling pad 
table to get closer to the pads. I stopped her and told her she was not allowed to be behind the table 
and she flashed a badge at me stating she was a poll watcher. It happened very fast so I didn’t get her 
name, but I had her move immediately and she did not touch anything and I had to tell her that she 
would need to move to a place where she was not in the way of us working. She did move and I didn’t 
have any other issues with her.  

Here are some notes of things I had come up during the day: 

The polling pads 

• Inactive voters: we were able to click on the voter’s name and the poll pad asked if we wanted to 
update the voter to active. Once we pressed yes, it printed the slip for them to get a ballot 
printed. (I have heard from others that they did not do this and had the voter vote provisionally) 
 

• Voters don’t show up in the 1st poll pad (even after putting in address or date of birth) We would 
do a double check on the poll pad #2 and most of the time we were able to find the voter which 
saved us from sending them to vote provisionally.  



 
• New voters that have never voted before: I would look to see if I could find them in the poll pad 

and most of the time, they were in the polling pad which saved us from sending them to vote 
provisionally. 
 

• The poll pads had all the county voters names in them. I was able to find myself in the poll pad 
and I live in Lodi and I was working in Stockton. That may have been because you could go to any 
polling place in the county. 

Printers / Ink / Paper 

We did need a 2nd box of paper, and we did need more ink for the printer 

We had one of the ink containers explode on us. We had black ink all over 2 of us and I was able to 
protect the printer so once we cleaned it all up and put in the new ink the ballots printed correctly. 

Paper: Who counts the paper before and after and where does the extra paper go? (should be counted 
at the polling place at the beginning when the box is opened, after it gets to the warehouse and then 
again before storing it) 

Provisional voters: 

We need a system to validate the provisional voter has voted. We had no way of validating that the voter 
had voted because the provisional envelope and pre-printed ballot goes into the black ballot box. 

Provisional ballots – only 1 stack of pre-printed ballots for that location, but voters could go to any 
polling place so wouldn’t have the correct ballot for local city races?  

New voters: 

We need a system to validate that the voter voted. There was no way of recording or validating that the 
new voter voted. 

Scanner: 

We need to verify the scanner is counting correctly. We need the person that is assigned to the scanner 
to check the scanner count before and after each person scans the paperwork to ensure that the scanner 
is working correctly.  

I am happy to speak to anyone who needs more information or would like to work on streamlining the 
process so the next election goes even smoother.  

 

 

 



Additional information: 

In the early evening, another polling location nearby sent people to our location. The reason given to us 
was their printer wasn’t working. I believe it was an issue with ink but I’m not sure if that was the only 
reason.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 

Deborah Collins 



���������	

��������������������������� !!�"#$#%&#$#'()*+,-+�� ./01�.234�5670�8.9:;9<=>�?@ABCDEFGHE�IJKILKMIMNOP+QQRSS��-� TDFUH�V�TDFUH�WEXYAYUBCZBYDAP+QQRSS���[��SR,\-�]̂_<̀_<a�=]b̀]cdP+QQRSS���e�*+�S-� f1�./0g1�==h9̂ <̂i�S�-S�j�SR+,� kHAZBH�V�ILKMlKMIMN�mHZE�BnH�UHGDAE�BYXHo�pqZGHE�DA�kHAZBH�rHsYUqZBYtH�uZqHAEZC�FAEHCvHAHCZq�wCEHCUo�uZqHAEZC�xDo�Nlyo��?czz�c{g72|}Oe+~~�P�~~��+S�-� �nHCH�nZtH��HHA�<��2zz�{�zz��2g/}���������� � ��"'( ������!"#%( ���� !"�( �� ��� ��!"�( ��!���!��!"�$'( �������  !"�( � ��� ������!"#(�nHCH�ZCH�l�UFXXZCYHU��DC�Tomo�M��o��7zz�}�  ��7/}�ZCH�ZFBnDCHE��¡�5.¢o£¤¥¦§�̈©ª©«¬®®©̄�̈¥°®©�±²³́µ²́¶²¶·̧)�¹�\º��»�jQ��R��,��+S���¼~R\R½R~RS¾�j�S�+��S¿��)j�¼�j�S�nYU��Yqq�CHÀFYCHU�YAEYtYEFZqU�BD�ÁCDtYEH�EDGFXHABZC¡�ÁCDD��D��Âoko�GYBYÃHAUnYÁ�YA�DCEHC�BD�CHsYUBHC�BD�tDBH�YA��HEHCZq�HqHGBYDAUokÁHGY�YGZqq¡Ä�BnH��Yqq�ÁCDnY�YBU�UBZBHU��CDX�ZGGHÁBYAs�ZAE�ÁCDGHUUYAs�ZA�ZÁÁqYGZBYDA�BD�CHsYUBHC�BD�tDBH�YA�Z��HEHCZq�HqHGBYDA�FAqHUUBnH�ZÁÁqYGZAB�ÁCHUHABU�EDGFXHABZC¡�ÁCDD��D��Âoko�GYBYÃHAUnYÁoÅFCBnHCÄ�BnH��Yqq�?�O�ÁCDnY�YBU�UBZBHU��CDX�CHsYUBHCYAs�ZA�YAEYtYEFZq�BD�tDBH�YA�Z��HEHCZq�HqHGBYDA�FAqHUUÄ�ZB�BnH�BYXH�BnH�YAEYtYEFZqZÁÁqYHU�BD�CHsYUBHC�BD�tDBHÄ�BnH�YAEYtYEFZq�ÁCDtYEHU�EDGFXHABZC¡�ÁCDD��D��Âoko�GYBYÃHAUnYÁÆ�ZAE�?MO�CHÀFYCHU�UBZBHU�BD�HUBZ�qYUn�ZAZqBHCAZBYtH�ÁCDGHUU�FAEHC�ÇnYGn�ZA�ZÁÁqYGZAB�XZ¡�UF�XYB�DBnHC�HtYEHAGH�BD�EHXDAUBCZBH�Âoko�GYBYÃHAUnYÁoÈZGn�UBZBH�XFUB�BZÉH�Z��YCXZBYtH�UBHÁU�DA�ZA�DAsDYAs��ZUYU�BD�HAUFCH�BnZB�DAq¡�Âoko�GYBYÃHAU�ZCH�CHsYUBHCHE�BD�tDBHÄ�ÇnYGn�UnZqqYAGqFEH�HUBZ�qYUnYAs�Z�ÁCDsCZX�BD�YEHABY�¡�YAEYtYEFZqU�ÇnD�ZCH�ADB�Âoko�GYBYÃHAU�FUYAs�YA�DCXZBYDA�UFÁÁqYHE��¡�UÁHGY�YHE�UDFCGHUoWEEYBYDAZqq¡Ä�BnH��Yqq�CHÀFYCHU�UBZBHU�BD�CHXDtH�ADAGYBYÃHAU��CDX�BnHYC�D��YGYZq�qYUBU�D��HqYsY�qH�tDBHCUo�nH��Yqq�ZqqDÇU��DC�Z�ÁCYtZBH�CYsnB�D��ZGBYDA�ZsZYAUB�ZA�HqHGBYDA�D��YGYZq�ÇnD�CHsYUBHCU�ZA�ZÁÁqYGZAB�BD�tDBH�YA�Z��HEHCZq�HqHGBYDA�ÇnD�ZYqU�BD�ÁCHUHAB�EDGFXHABZC¡�ÁCDD��D��Âoko�GYBYÃHAUnYÁo�nH��Yqq�HUBZ�qYUnHU�GCYXYAZq�ÁHAZqBYHU��DC�GHCBZYA�D��HAUHUÄ�YAGqFEYAs�CHsYUBHCYAs�ZA�ZÁÁqYGZAB�BD�tDBH�YA�Z��HEHCZq�HqHGBYDA�ÇnD�ZYqU�BD�ÁCHUHAB�EDGFXHABZC¡�ÁCDD��D��Âoko�GYBYÃHAUnYÁo�nH�ÈqHGBYDA�WUUYUBZAGH�uDXXYUUYDA�XFUBÄ�ÇYBnYA��I�EZ¡UÄ�ZEDÁB�ZAE�BCZAUXYB�sFYEZAGH��DC�YXÁqHXHABYAs�BnH��YqqÊU�CHÀFYCHXHABUBD�GnYH��UBZBH�HqHGBYDA�D��YGYZqUo

ËÌÍÎÏÐÑÒÓÐ ¬®®©̄�̈¥°®©
ÔÕÖÖÓÐ�×ÏÑÖÓ�ØÙÚÛÜÙÛÝÙÝÞß àáâãäåæçèéê



�������� �	
������ �
���� ������� ����������� ����
����� ����������������� ��������������� !"����������#��$�%������������$��#������������������
���&'������()�*)++�*,-./.0(.1�234�5657

8�9:;<=�>?@@A�:B;�;C<?=�DE@@:;�E;�E�9:;?FG�H<F;<=�?F�;C<�I?=<DEBGC�J<F?:=�K<F;<=�:F�L:9M�NO�PQPRM�SC:;:�DT�UE==T�VE@<FWB<@EO�KE@XE;;<=AYKE;HCU?GC;�U:HE@

'�����



���������	
���	
��������������	�����	���
������������	���
�����������������
��������������������	����������������	���	�������	������	�������������������� ��!���	
"�#$��	
��	����%��������&	
"�'�����	�
����'�	��'�����
�(���������������������������������)����������������'������
��	��	�	
�*�+,-.�/012�3453�67887,2�9187:,-2712;�<,/.="������>?@�����������������������	�����	�������A�����	��
�BC@����	���������������������������	���������� �������������	��"�������
�$?@������
��	��"������?D@��������E���������F��GCGC"�HIJ�,:�<,/.-;�21/7,2K7=.�L1;/�6178M72�N188,/;"�	����������������O�'�������������	������������	�������������	����������"�K07L0�01=�12�.;P.L7188Q�07R0�<,/.-�/S-2,S/"��������������/07;�Q.1-�:.88*�F��GCGC"��������	��?>�>����������	�������	��������������������������������T���������U��V�����	�������E���������&��	��������"�	����������������	����������������������	����������������������	����?C��������	�������������������	�����GCGW��A�������������������������������������
�	������	�������������������	�������������������GC?B�	���������V	�	��� 	�	����������������GC?G�	���GCC$"������
�	���	��	����������������	���������������������������	�������	����������������������������	�����	���
���	�����������	�������	�	�����	�����������������������������������������
�	���������������1S/,61/7L�<,/.-�-.R7;/-1/7,2�;Q;/.6"������������������	
������������
��������������	��
�)	����	��
"�������������������������������
�	����	������������	������"���������������
����XS2P-.L.=.2/.=�12=�P,K.-:S8�612=1/.Y���	���������������������������
�������"�	���:178.=�/,�L1P/S-./0.�61Z,-7/Q�<,/.��F���	�������	"����������[������	������������	���	����	����	������������?D$$"�\���T���������]	�	�	�̂	������	���������	����
"��	�������������D�G��������������"����_$�_@"�����	��������������B��������"����#$�#@��̂	�����	�����������������&�����	��A�	��'���̀����V��	��"��������������D���������������������O�'��'��	����	���	�	�����[������	���	����	���'�����a	���
�V�������	�������V����"��������������??�?��������������"����B#�_@"����GCGC"�̂	����������������	��������'��������������	���72�188�NS/�,2.�,:�/0.�;/1/.b;�cd�L,S2/7.;��������	�����	�����	��	�������	�����������������6,;/�,:�/0.�;/1/.b;�e1/72,M61Z,-7/Q�L,S2/7.;�����	����������������������GCGC� �������	
"��	�������	���_W���������������%������	����������������	�����	��������	����	����������	�����������������̂	�����������	���������%������	������������������������������	��������������������������
������������U	���B��A������/0.�3f�N188,/�P-,P,;7/7,2;"�����	���E��������	����"�g-,P,;7/7,2�I4"�	���g-,P5�Ic�����	���	��	h����	�	�����	�����	���������	������	�������	����"��������������������	����	�����"������	����������



��������	�
�������������������������������	����	����	������������������������������������������	��� !����������������"����#�����$�����	��%�������������	&�'�#��������������	(���������	���	���������������)*+,-��./0-1/�,�.,220�,1.��3�������%���������#����	�������+�1��*�0/-4�/-�5����2.//�6������	�����������������������������7�	�����	(�6��	������8�091�,+8�:*/1�0/1��;����#�����#���<,�2�=.�:,+&���>����;����"���������	�����������������	�������;����#���?������	��$��������&�����	�������	(���(�������	������������	��������������������	��	(���������@ABBCDE�FGHIGEEJDKL�"�	����	�����$��M��������������������	���������7�	�����������	N����������		����3����M������	����	���$�����	���M�����O�	���>���&��������������	(���PQ!R���	������������	(���	����	���	�����������������7������	�$��M�������������S�*�-.�4�0��8�+,1*�+�1�8,4�TUVWX�@UTXYW@�ZT[�@VT[\]�̂_T̀



���������	
������� ���������� ������������ � !�"������#$�%�&����#$ '�������($)$*+,-./0�1232�4567-,-568/�95,0+�:0;-<,+8,-56�5=48/-=5+6-8�>/0.,-56<�4570�??�@-A-<-56�B2�??�4C8D,0+B2�??�*+,-./0�1232#EFG$



�����



�����
�����











1

Election Advisory Committee
Olivia Hale, Registrar of Voters 

January 9, 2025



2

San Joaquin County General Election 2024: 
Voter Participation Breakdown

83,100 VOTERS WENT TO THE POLLS ON ELECTION DAY!
Voter Turnout:
267,627 (70.68%)
In-Person Voting: 
48,900 ballots cast 
(including CVR/Provisional)
Early Voting:
1,933 ballots cast
Vote-by-Mail: 
216,794 ballots cast

Vote-by-Mail Returns:
• 105,194 by US mail 
• 76,722 from drop boxes
• 678 returned to the ROV office
• 34,200 returned to polling locations 

on Election Day



3

Drop Box Ballots Returned by Location

139
197

371
377

519
537

706
991
1020

1515
1600

1812
2013
2046
2131

2553
2691

3452
4911

5277
6620

6813
8101

8846
11484

Circle K Farmington
Clements Country Market

Elks Lodge Tracy
Viaggio Estate  and Winery Acampo

Kennedy Community Center S. Stockton
CSU Stanislaus-Stockton

Lomeli Gardens Lodi
Taft Community Center

Orlando's Market (Linden)
La Reina Supermarket Lathrop
Young's Payless IGA Lockeford

Lathrop City Hall
Escalon City Hall

Four Corners Restaurant Tracy
Ansel Adams Elementary N. Stockton
The Shops at Orchard Valley Manteca

Stockton City Hall
Mountain House City Hall

Ripon City Hall
Quail Lakes Shopping Center

Marina Center N. Stockton
Lodi Grape Festival

Manteca City Hall
County Administration Building

Tracy City Hall



4

Election Officer Statistics
560

354

170 159

53

Clerk Student Inspector Election
Night Worker

Field
Inspector



5

In-Person Voting
• 171 Polling Precincts
• 48,900 in-person ballots cast including CVRs and Provisionals
• Additional 34,200 voters dropped off their mail ballots in-person at 

polling places on election day
• Combined total in-person voting: 83,100
• Over 31% of the total votes cast were done utilizing in-person voting 

options during this election



6

Election Security
• All 25 Drop Boxes had security cameras live streaming 24/7, available 

to the public on ROV website
• Sheriff Escorts on Election Night for final pickups from Drop Boxes. 

Additional Sheriff Escorts were also provided for transport from all 5 
receiving centers to the ROV warehouse for Election Night Reporting

• All ballots were under camera surveillance at all times once received at 
the County Administration Building, including during opening, sorting, 
inspection, scanning, and tabulation. 



7

Department of Justice 
Election Observers

Department of Justice Election Feedback
• Disability Access Evaluation:

• Emphasis on ensuring ADA compliance at all polling locations.
• Need to access all or additional locations to improve ADA accessibility.

• Current ADA Access Success:
• Most existing locations successfully meet ADA requirements.
• Continuous monitoring and improvements planned for better accessibility.

• Issues Reported:
• One location failed to have the Verity Touch Writer operational at 7 AM.
• Immediate corrective measures taken to ensure accessibility.

• Blind Voter Assistance:
• A blind voter required a provisional ballot, highlighting the need for accessible voting options.
• Additional training required for election officers on how to effectively assist blind voters 

needing provisional ballots.



8

Department of Justice 
Election Observers

• Language Support at Polling Locations:
• All locations were equipped with translated materials available in multiple 

languages.
• Challenges with Spanish Language Support:

• Six locations identified with Spanish speakers not proficient enough to 
effectively communicate with voters.

• Some translators struggled with providing accurate interpretations, though 
most performed well countywide.

• Action Required:
• Emphasize the need for proficient Spanish speakers at all polling locations.
• Ensure all language support staff can provide clear and accurate voting 

instructions.



9

Voter Roll Maintenance
• Voter Roll Maintenance Overview:

• San Joaquin County Registrar of Voters (ROV) follows California Elections Code.
• Continuous year-round maintenance to ensure accuracy and compliance.

• Proactive Address Verification:
• A citizen reported voters registered at business addresses.
• Investigation confirmed all flagged registrations were at legitimate residential 

addresses.
• Utilized Google Maps and other tools to verify the accuracy of addresses.
• Findings were forwarded to the San Joaquin County Sheriff's department for further 

verification.
• Enhanced Death Record Verification:

• Regular death records provided monthly by San Joaquin County Public Health.
• ROV office requested death records for the past five years to ensure comprehensive 

verification.
• Initiative part of due diligence to prevent any discrepancies in voter rolls.



10

Provisional/CVR Envelope Update
• Provisional/CVR Envelope Redesign:

• Objective: Simplify and streamline the voting process at polling locations.
• New Envelope Features:

• Introduction of a carbon copy style envelope.
• Combines all necessary forms into a single, integrated envelope.

• Benefits for Election Officers:
• Eliminates the need to manage multiple separate forms.
• Reduces potential for errors and speeds up processing time at polling stations.

• All-Purpose Functionality:
• Designed to serve all purposes for which a voter might visit a polling location.
• Enhances efficiency and ensures consistency in handling voter needs.
• Significantly reduces processing times for ROV staff post-election.



11

Questions?


	2025-01-09 EAC Agenda (Final)
	Election Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes - May 23, 2024
	8.26.24 Minutes - EAC
	E.O. Feedback Survey Reponses
	�
	1. Did you feel adequately prepared after completing the Election Officer training? 
	2. Did the training cover all aspects of your duties as an Election Officer? 
	3. Were the training materials easy to understand and follow? 
	4. Did the training provide sufficient information on handling different voter scenarios (e.g., ID requirements, provisional ballots, Conditional Voter Registrations)? 
	5. Were the trainers knowledgeable and able to address your questions effectively? 
	6.  Did the training prepare you to handle technical issues (e.g., voting machines, software glitches)? 
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15

	11-5-24 SJC Election Officer notes- revised
	H.R.8281 - 118th Congress (2023-2024)_ ...t _ Congress
	After five weeks, California knows its election results. Dive in
	Article 4.5. Conditional Voter Registra...ision 2. __ Chapter 2. __ Article 4.5
	New California Law Prohibits Localities..
	Post-Election Update Presentation General 2024_Final_EAC edits
	Election Advisory Committee
	San Joaquin County General Election 2024: �Voter Participation Breakdown��83,100 VOTERS WENT TO THE POLLS ON ELECTION DAY!�
	Drop Box Ballots Returned by Location
	Election Officer Statistics
	In-Person Voting
	Election Security
	Department of Justice �Election Observers
	Department of Justice �Election Observers
	Voter Roll Maintenance
	Provisional/CVR Envelope Update
	Questions?




